### **Public Document Pack**

#### MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE HIGHWAYS ADVISORY COMMITTEE Council Chamber - Town Hall 12 May 2015 (7.00 - 8.30 pm)

Present:

COUNCILLORS

**Conservative Group** Frederick Thompson, John Crowder, Dilip Patel,

Carol Smith and +Philippa Crowder

Brian Eagling and Linda Hawthorn

**Residents' Group** Barry Mugglestone and John Mylod

**East Havering** 

**Residents' Group** 

**UKIP** lan de Wulverton (Chairman)

**Independent Residents** 

Group

**David Durant** 

Apologies were received for the absence of Councillor Ray Best.

+Substitute member: Councillor Philippa Crowder (for Ray Best).

Also present for part of the meeting were Councillors Clarence Barrett and Ron Ower.

Unless otherwise indicated all decisions were agreed with no vote against.

2 members of the public were present.

The Chairman reminded Members and the public of the action to be taken in an emergency.

#### 98 **MINUTES**

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2015 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

## 99 PROPOSED PAY & DISPLAY PARKING PROVISIONS - TPC 526 GILBERT ROAD

The Committee considered a report that set out the responses to the advertised proposals to change the existing meter parking bays to Pay & Display parking bays in Gilbert Road.

The report detailed that at the close of public consultation on 9 January 2015, two responses were received to the proposals. One response was in favour and one was against the proposed scheme.

The report informed the committee that the installation of Pay & Display in Gilbert Road would see an improvement of the parking infrastructure and reduction of street furniture. The existing meters would be reused elsewhere.

In accordance with the public participation arrangements the Committee was addressed by a local resident who spoke against the scheme. The speaker informed the committee that he lived at number 5 Gilbert Road and that the proposed parking bay would hinder his ability to enter and leave his driveway. The speaker raised concerns over line of sight and the use of the proposed parking spaces by taxi drivers.

During a brief debate, Members received clarification of the exact location of 5 Gilbert Close and the proposed parking bays. Officers confirmed that the proposed bays would not be in the vicinity of 5 Gilbert Close. The Committee received clarification that the number of parking bays would remain the same with the introduction of new machines including updated technology and greater efficiencies for revenue collection that include telephone payment.

#### The Committee **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the following measures be implemented as advertised:
  - (a) to change existing meter parking bays to Pay and Display parking bays in Gilbert Road (Romford) as shown on this report as Appendix 1
  - (b) that the effect of the scheme be monitored.
- That the estimated cost of Pay & Display parking in Gilbert Road as set out in the report was £4,000 and would be funded from the capital

## 100 TPC326 & TPC505 - AVON ROAD/FRONT LANE/MOOR LANE/MARLBPROROUGH GARDENS/MOULTRIE WAY. PROPOSED CHANGE OF FREE PARKING BAY TO PAY & DISPLAY

The report before Members detailed the outcome to the advertised proposals to change the use of the existing Free Parking Bays located in Avon Road/Front Lane/Moor Lane/Marlborough Gardens/ Moultrie Way to paid for parking facilities.

The report detailed that throughout the borough there was a general trend for the Council to receive requests to change the existing free parking bays to Pay and Display parking bays and limited waiting bays, which were now considered to be more convenient and user friendly for visitors and shoppers.

A public consultation was carried out from 15 February 2015, 227 residents and business holders who were perceived to be affected by the proposals were advised of them by letter and plan. Eighteen statutory bodies were also consulted and site notices were placed at the location.

During the consultation period there was a change in policy with regards to Pay and Display parking. Vehicles were to be given a free parking period, as well as there being a change to the tariff prices. With all these changes taking place it was decided that the consultation should be launched detailing these changes.

The re-launched consultation was carried out from 4 March 2015. By the close of the consultation on 27 March 2015, there were twenty-eight responses received to the proposals, 27 against and one for. A further two petitions were received, one was in the form of 165 signed photocopied letters outlining four points of objection to the proposals.

With its agreement Councillor Clarence Barrett addressed the Committee.

Councillor Barrett stated that the current arrangement that afforded car users 90 minutes free parking worked well. Councillor Barrett stated that the report was deficient in information. He questioned the cost of four new machines at £5000 each and challenged the estimated income figures, stating that this was not value for money. Councillor Barrett stated that the scheme, if implemented, would result in the vehicles using the unrestricted parking in Moultrie Way. Councillor Barrett was also of the view that the cashless phone machine proposed for Marlborough Gardens that required an account to be set-up would only penalise the large elderly population.

During a brief debate, a Member stated that the scheme was a pointless and expensive exercise. Another member questioned whether the new machines would ever re-coup the investment. Another member felt the proposed scheme would have a detrimental effect on the shops in the area.

The report recommended that the proposal be implemented, however following a motion to reject the scheme which was carried, it was **RESOLVED** that the proposal to change free parking bays to Pay & display parking bays in Avon Road/Front Lane/Moor Lane/Marlborough Gardens/ Moultrie Way be recommended to the Cabinet Member for Environment to be Rejected.

The vote for the proposal to reject was carried by ten votes in favour with one against. Councillor Wulverton voted against the proposal.

#### 101 BUS STOP ACCESSIBILITY - NOAK HILL ROAD

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the bus stop accessibility improvements on Noak Hill Road set out in the report and shown on the following drawings (contained within Appendix I) be implemented;
  - QN008-OF-A233 & A234-A
  - QN008-OF-A235-A
  - QN008-OF-A236-A
- 2. That it be noted that the estimated cost of £24,000 for implementation (all sites) would be met by Transport for London through the 2015/16 Local Implementation Plan allocation for Bus Stop Accessibility.

#### 102 BUS STOP ACCESSIBILITY - LOWER BEDFORD ROAD

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the bus stop accessibility improvements on Lower Bedfords Road set out in the report and shown on the following drawing (contained within Appendix I) be implemented
  - QN008-OF-A231 & A232-A
- 2. That it be noted that the estimated cost of £8,000 for implementation (all sites) would be met by Transport for London through the 2015/16 Local Implementation Plan allocation for Bus Stop Accessibility.

#### 103 BUS STOP ACCESSIBILITY - HAVERING ROAD

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the bus stop accessibility improvements on Havering Road set out in the report and shown on the following drawings (contained within Appendix I) are implemented
  - QN008-OF-A190A
  - QN008-OF-A191A
- 2. That it be noted that the estimated cost of £22,000 for implementation (all sites) will be met by Transport for London through the 2015/16 Local Implementation Plan allocation for Bus Stop Accessibility.

The vote for the proposal was carried by ten votes in favour with and one abstention. Councillor Durant abstained from voting.

#### 104 BUS STOP ACCESSIBILITY - LODGE LANE

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the bus stop accessibility improvements on Lodge Lane set out in the report and shown on the following drawings (contained within Appendix I) be implemented
  - QN008-OF-A177&178-A
  - QN008-OF-A179-A
  - QN008-OF-A180-A
  - QN008-OF-A181-A
- 2. That it be noted that the estimated cost of £19,000 for implementation (all sites) would be met by Transport for London through the 2015/16 Local Implementation Plan allocation for Bus Stop Accessibility.

#### 105 BUS STOP ACCESSIBILITY - ORANGE TREE HILL

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the bus stop accessibility improvements on Orange Tree Hill set out in the report and shown on the following drawings (contained within Appendix I) are implemented
  - QN008-OF-A192A & A193A
  - QN008-OF-A194A & A195A

2. That it be noted that the estimated cost of £20,000 for implementation (all sites) would be met by Transport for London through the 2015/16 Local Implementation Plan allocation for Bus Stop Accessibility.

### 106 FAIRHOLME AVENUE - TPC622 PROPOSED 'AT ANY TIME' WAITING RESTRICTIONS

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the following measures be advertised:
  - a. The introduction of 'At any time' waiting restrictions between the Pay and Display parking bays and the common boundary of numbers 2 and 4, as shown on the drawing in Appendix A of the report
  - b. That the effect of the scheme be monitored.
- 2. That the cost of the scheme would be funded from the 2015/16 Minor Parking Schemes budget.

## 107 PROPOSED PAY & DISPLAY PARKING PROVISIONS - TPC 529 ALBERT ROAD

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the following measures be implemented as advertised:
  - (a) Proposed Pay and Display parking bays in Albert Road as shown on the drawing in Appendix 1 of the report
  - (b) that the effect of the scheme be monitored.
- That the estimated cost of Pay & Display parking in Albert Road as set out in the report was £4,000 and would be funded from the Streetcare capital budget.

## 108 PROPOSED PAY & DISPLAY PARKING PROVISIONS - TPC 530 CRAIGDALE ROAD

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the following measures be implemented as advertised:

- (a) Proposed Pay and Display parking bays in Craigdale Road as shown on the drawing in Appendix 1 of the report
- (b) that the effect of the scheme be monitored.
- 2. That the estimated cost of Pay & Display parking in Craigdale Road as set out in the report was £4,000 and would be funded from the Streetcare Capital Budget.

### 109 PROPOSED PAY & DISPLAY PARKING PROVISIONS - TPC 531 MARKS ROAD

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the following measures be implemented as advertised:
- (a) to change existing meter parking bays to Pay and Display parking bays in Marks Road (Romford) as shown on the report as Appendix 1
- (b) that the effect of the scheme be monitored.
- 2. That Members note that the estimated cost of Pay & Display parking in Marks Road as set out in the report was £4,000 and would be funded from the capital allocation;

## 110 PROPOSED PAY & DISPLAY PARKING PROVISIONS - TPC 533 LINDEN STREET

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the following measures be implemented as advertised:
- (a) to change existing meter parking bays to Pay and Display parking bays in Linden Street as shown on the drawing in Appendix 1 of the report
- (b) that the effect of the scheme be monitored.
- 2. That the estimated cost of Pay & Display parking in Linden Street as set out in the report was £4,000 and would be funded from the Streetcare capital budget;

## 111 PROPOSED PAY & DISPLAY PARKING PROVISIONS - TPC 532 OLIVE STREET

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the following measures be implemented as advertised:
- (a) to change existing meter parking bays to Pay and Display parking bays in Olive Street (Romford) as shown on the drawing in Appendix 1 of the report
- (b) that the effect of the scheme be monitored.
- 2. That the estimated cost of Pay & Display parking in Olive Street as set out in the report was £4,000 and would be funded from the Streetcare capital budget.

## 112 PROPOSED PAY & DISPLAY PARKING PROVISIONS - TPC 528 DOUGLAS ROAD

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommend to the Cabinet Member for Environment that the following measures be implemented as advertised:
- (a) to change existing disc parking bays to Pay and Display parking bays in Douglas Road as shown on the drawing in Appendix 1 of the report:
- (b) that the effect of the scheme be monitored.
- 2. That the estimated cost of Pay & Display parking in Douglas Road as set out in the report was £4,000 and would be funded from the capital allocation.

## 113 TPC426 - TADWORTH AND STATION PARADE, PROPOSED CHANGE OF DISC PARKING TO PAY & DISPLAY

At its last meeting the Committee decided to defer a decision on the proposal in order to enable officers to provide further clarification on issues relating to the entitlement of parking permits.

The Committee received confirmation that where businesses share a premises each business would receive a separate allocation of business and visitor permits. A Member also requested that officers reconsider the location of the proposed disabled parking bay. The committee received

confirmation that the relocation of the disabled bay could be considered under the delegated authority of the Head of Service.

Following this clarification, the Committee **RESOLVED**:

- 1. To recommends to the Cabinet Member for the Environment that:
- a. The proposals to change the use of the existing Disc parking facilities in Tadworth and Station Parades to Paid for parking and Residents Parking be implemented as advertised.
- b. The proposals for loading facilities within both parades be implemented as advertised.
- c. The proposed waiting restrictions within the both parades, including the proposed 'At any time' waiting restrictions at the junctions, be implemented as advertised.
- d. the effect of any agreed proposals be monitored.
- 2. That the estimated cost of this scheme in Station Parade and Tadworth Parade as set out in the report was £14,000, which would be funded from the capital allocation and the remaining £2,500 would be met from the 2014/15 Minor Parking Schemes budget.

#### 114 HIGHWAYS SCHEMES APPLICATION - WORKS PROGRAMME

The Committee had considered a report with all the new highway scheme requests in order for a decision to be made on whether the scheme should progress or not before resources were expended on detailed design and consultation.

The Committee had considered and agreed in principle the schedule that detailed the applications received by the service.

The Committee's decisions were noted as against each request and appended to the minutes.

#### 115 TRAFFIC AND PARKING SCHEMES REQUEST

The report before the Committee had detailed all Minor Traffic and Parking Scheme application requests in order for a decision to be made on whether the scheme should progress or not before resources were expended on detailed design and consultation.

The Committee had considered and agreed in principle the schedule that detailed the applications received by the service.

## <u>Highways Advisory Committee, 12 May 2015</u>

e Committe ended to th		were	noted	as	against	each	request	and
						Ch	-i	
						Cn	airman	

# London Borough of Havering Engineering Services, Highways - Streetcare Highway Schemes Applications Schedule

Item Ref	Location	Ward	Description	Officer Advice
SEC1	ΓΙΟΝ A - Highwa	y scheme proposal	s with funding in pla	се
None t	o report this month			
SEC1	ΓΙΟΝ Β - Highwa	y scheme proposal	s without funding av	ailable
P	o report this month			
SEC1	ΓΙΟΝ C - Highwa	y scheme proposal	s on hold for future o	discussion (for Noting)
H2	Broxhill Road, Havering-atte- Bower	Havering Park	Widening of existing and extension of footway from junction with North Road to Bedfords Park plus creation of bridleway behind.	Noted
H3	Finucane Gardens, near junction with Penrith Crescent	Elm Park	Width restriction and road humps to reduce traffic speeds of ratrunning between Wood Lane and Mungo Park Road.	Noted

## London Borough of Havering Engineering Services, Highways - Streetcare Highway Schemes Applications Schedule

Item Ref	Location	Ward	Description	Officer Advice
<sup>±</sup> Page 2	A124/ Hacton Lane/ Wingletye Lane junction	Cranham, Emerson Park, St Andrews	Provision of "green man" crossing stage on all 4 arms of the junction.	Noted
H5	Havering Road/ Mashiters Hill/ Pettits Lane North junction	Havering Park, Mawneys, Pettits	Provide pedestrian refuges on Havering Road arms, potentially improve existing refuges on other two arms	Noted

# London Borough of Havering Engineering Services, Highways - Streetcare Highway Schemes Applications Schedule

Item Ref	Location	Ward	Description	Officer Advice
<sup>≝</sup> Page 3	Ockendon Road, near Sunnings Lane	Upminster	Pedestrian refuge	Noted
H7	Dagnam Park Drive, near Brookside School		In response to serious concerns for pupils safety, crossing the road to attend Brookside Infant & Junior School, request to reduce speed limit from 30mph to 20mph.	Noted

This page is intentionally left blank

London Borough of Havering Traffic & Parking Control - StreetCare Minor Traffic & Parking Schemes Applications Schedule

	Item Ref	Location	Comments/Description	Decision
	SECTION A -	Minor Traffic and Park		
	TPC701	Squirrels Heath	The request is to extend the Controlled Parking Zone in Squirrels Heath Road, between the end of the Zone and the A127, so all properties in this area can have permits for the Zone	Agreed
Page 5	TPC702	Camborne Avenue	A request to install single yellow lines in Camborne Avenue from the junction of Gooshays Drive to Camborne Way on the even side of the road	Agreed
	TPC703	Springfield Gardens	A request to extend the Controlled Parking Zone in Springfield Gardens to the junction with Argyle Gardens	Agreed
	TPC704	Diban Avenue	To covert the existing waiting restrictions out side the Childrens Centre in Diban Avenue and replace with School Keep Clear Markings operational Mon-Fri 8am to 5pm.	Agreed

ס
a
ge
_
O

TPC705 Court Gardens Request to include numbers 1 to 10 into the newly agreed resident permit scheme in Court Avenue.
---